
Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of MOSAIC MEDIA VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
 
Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of “MOSAIC MEDIA VENTURES 
PRIVATE LIMITED” (“the company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations give to us, the 
aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principal generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive 
income, change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conduct our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other Ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the  financial statements. 
 
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprise the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board Report’s, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and shareholder’s Information, but does not include the  financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the  financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, is doing so, consider whenever the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the  financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act’ 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimate that are reasonable and prudent, and 
design implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the  Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or 
to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.   
  
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.  
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the  financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

  
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the  financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.   
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 
c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the statement of change in equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2022 taken by Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on March 31, 
2022 from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. 
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f) On the basis of the information and explanation provided to us by the Company the 

internal financial control framework, in our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
aspects, adequate internal financial controls systems in place and such controls are 
operating effectively as at March 31 2022. A separate report on this clause has been 
attached as “Annexure B” to this report as prescribed by the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Our report express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operative effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.    

 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position. 
 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 
iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provided 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 
provided under (a) and  (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 
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v) The Company have not declared and paid dividend during the year, accordingly 
compliance u/s 123 of the Act is not applicable to the company. 

 

 
For MRKS And Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 023711N 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kamal Ahuja 
(Partner) 
M. No.: 505788 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: …………… 
UDIN: …………………. 
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the members of MOSAIC MEDIA VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED of 
even date) 
 
(i) In respect of Company Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets : 

 
(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment. 
 
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets. 
  
(b) The Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during  
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification of the Property, plant and equipment is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
 
(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under clause 
3(i)(c) is not applicable. 
 
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right- 
of-      use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 
 
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at   
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventories; accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 crore, in 
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis 
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

 
(iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee and security and granted 

any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) 
of the Order are not applicable. 
 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given 
any loans, made investments or provided securities to companies and other parties 
listed under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) 
of the order is not applicable to the company. 

 
 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of directives issues by the Reserve Bank of India 
and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(v) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 
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(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub 
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by 
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause(vi) of the order is not applicable to the company.  

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account 
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, value added tax and cess 
and any other statutory dues to appropriate authority have generally been regularly deposited 
during the year by the Company. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s 
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax and Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2022 for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, as at March 31, 2022, there are no dues of Goods and Service Tax or sales tax 
or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute. 
 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, as at March 31, 2022, there were no such transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
 

(ix) (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting 
under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

 
                  (c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term 

loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable.  

(d) On an overall examination of the Financial statements of the company, the company has not 
raised any fund on short term basis. 

  (e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries. 

       (f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f)    
of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(x) (a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a)  of the 
Order is not applicable.  
 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(xi) (a) No Fraud by the Company and no material on the company has been noticed or reported 

during the year. 
 
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 
 
 (c) As informed, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year 
(upto the date of this report). 
 

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the order 
is not applicable. 
 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act,2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.  
 

(xiv) (a)In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and the nature of its business. 
(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedures. 

 
(xv) Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person connected with 

him and therefore the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act’ 2013 are not applicable 
to the Company. 

 
(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

 
    (b) According to the information and explanations provided to us by management of the 

Company, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) does not have more than one CIC (which is not required to be registered with 
RBI as not being Systemically Important CIC ) as detailed in note 39 to the standalone financial 
statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by 
the management is accurate and complete. 

 
(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 59,644,694 during the financial year 

covered by our audit and amounting to Rs. 171,021,945 in the immediately preceding financial 
year. 
 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements 
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. 
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(xx) The provision of Sec 135 of Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company, 

accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) is not applicable.  
 
 
For MRKS And Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 023711N 
 
 
 
 
 
Kamal Ahuja 
(Partner) 
M. No.: 505788 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: …………….. 
UDIN: …………………….. 
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on The Financial Statements of 
MOSAIC MEDIA VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MOSAIC MEDIA 
VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
Management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

For MRKS And Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 023711N 
 
 
 
 
 
Kamal Ahuja 
(Partner) 
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M. No.: 505788 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: …………….. 
UDIN: …………………….. 

 

 



I ASSETS
1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipmenr
(b) Intanqible assets
(c) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets

10, 11,902
t4,69,54r

22,OO0

22,97,O95
33,00,205

50,38,750

Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(iv) Other financial assets

4,37,77,57a
89,96,930
73,04,902

2,18,958

2,66,O7,449
1,55,39,636

7r,32,452
66,740

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Ecuity

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Instruments entirely €quity in nature

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabiliUes

(i) Trade payable
(a)Total outstanding due of micro
enterDrises and small enterDrises
(b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other

73,96r

2,0 3,83,90 3

z,oJ,60,5az
6,08,21,586

29,79,287

than of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Contract liabilities
(c) Provisions

1. ,94,1,r,22A

1,81,54,918
5,73,67,69!

34,t6,438

accompanyinq notes to the financial statements.
n terms of our report of even date attached

For a on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Media Ventures Private Li

(DrN 031 rN 02797819)



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss fo. the vear ended tlarch 31, 2022
Particqlars Notes Year ended

?iarch 3\ 2022

Amount in INR

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Amount in INR
f Income
a) Revenue from operations
b) Other income

Total Income
II Expenses

a) EmDloyee benefits exDense
b) Finance costs
c) Depreciation and amortization exDense
d) Other exoenses

Total Expenses
III Loss before exceptional items and tax f.om operations(I-tl)
Mxceptional items gain
V Loss before tax (II!+IV)
Vl Loss before finance costs, tax, depreciation and amortization

expense (EBITDA) and exceptional items IIII+U(b)+lI(c)l
Vlf Tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Vlll Loss after tax (V-vu)

IX Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will not to be reclassified subseouenuy to orofit or loss
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit Dlans
Income tax effect

Other Comprehensive Loss, net of tax
X Total Comprehgnsive Loss, net of tax (VIIt+lX)

Loss Der share
Basic & Diluted
(Nominal value of share INR 10 each)

18 18,52.94,005 12,13,13,059
19 1,38.06.818 16.33,699

19,91,OO.a23 12,29.46.7s5

20 16,45,O2,79a 20,91,01,642
21 63,a6,432 79.05.617
22 30,14,704 30.98.729
23 7 .59.71,969 7,76.59.421

24,98,75,903 29,77.65,4lJ9
(5.O7,75,OaO) (r7,48,tA,6sr)

24 - t3,st,7a,ooo
@

(4,13,73,944) (r6,3a,L4,3O4)

(5.07,75,OaO) (3,96.40.5s1)

( 1,65,902)

(1,6s,9O2)

( 1,2 3,530)

(1,23.53O)
(1.65,902) ( 1.23,5301(5,O9,40,9a2) (3.97,64,lalt

26
(6s8.26) (796.78)

Summary of significant accounting policies

IN 031

behalf of the Board of Di
Ventures Private

See accomDanyinq notes to the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached

For MRKS and Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registrition Number: 2371 1N)

9N>,-.-.''
Kamal Ahuja
Partner
14embership No. 505788

Placei New Delhi

1)

Place: New Delhi



Mosaic lledia V€ntures Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended March gL,2022

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount in INR Amount in INR

Cash flow from operating activities :
Loss before tax :

Adiustment for :

Depreciation and amortization exDense
Profit on sale of assets (net)
Provision for doubtful debts
Liabilities no longer required written back (ExceOtional item qain)
Impairment of Property plant and equipment
Loss on sale of Property plant and equipment
Unclaimed balances/liabilities written back (net)
Interest exDenses
Interest income from deposits and others
Cash flows used in operating activities before changes in
following assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease in other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in Drovisions
Cash used in operations
lncome taxes paid/ (refund)

( s,07,75,080)

30,t4,7_04

10,79,160

1,53.554
(7,O9,27,437)

(26,33,s57)

(3,96,40,651)

30,9a,729
(46,612)

6,47,447
/1? <1 7a nnn\

s,36,538

( 1,41,635 )
30,44,537
( 5,03,696)

(6,OO,82,656)

(7,65,64,129)
4,47,407

3,34,47 ,L07
(27,30,906)

(16,8r,83,342)

( 1,14,31,881)
16,46,985

2,09,81,51 1
(22,14.169\

(4,so,a3,r771
B 1.7 5.330

(15,92,O0,89s)
23,La,672

Net cash used in ope (3.69.07,847) ( tS,6af,"z-_-241
Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible
asset under develooment
Sale of Property Plant and Equipment
Purchase of fixed deposits (maturity more than 3 months)
Interest received

(2,49,Ooo)

1 q6 SAa
(1,72,450)

(24,3r,9O4)

7a,to,7 22
(4,27 ,O89)
5.17.860

Net cash from/(use 3.66,666 (5J0,412)
Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from borrowinqs
Interest paid on short term borrowinqs
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (includinq securities

13,00,00,000
(28,66,537)

2.49.q9.6870remium)
Net cash tlows from 2,99,9eA75 15.21,t5ji6-Netdecreaseincashandcashequiva|ents(D=A+B+C)w
Cash and cash equivalents at the beqinninq of the year (E ) 1,55,39.636 2.0g.19,155
Cash and cash eouiv 89.96,930 f.55.39,63-
Components of cash & cash €quivalents as at end of the year
Cash in hand 4O2 402
Balances with banks

- on currenr accounB 99,96,529 75,39,234
- on deposit accounts - BO.OO.00O

Cash ana cash eouiv gg,g6.g31 1,55,39,63-

Kamal Ahuja
Partner
N4embership No. 505788

Place: New Delhi

Summary of significant accountinq policies 2
The accomDanyinq notes are an inteqral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For mRKS and Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Nqmb€r: 23711N)

behalf ot the Board of Directors of
Ventures Private

Place: New Delhi

Di

o27978L



l.losaic i|edia Ventures Private Limited
Statement of chanc€s in equity for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Equiv Share Capital ( Refer Note 11)
Equity Shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fullv Daid uD

Particulars
Balance as at April 1, 2O2O
Changes in share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Changes in share capital during the year
Bafance as at March 3L, 2022

B, Other Equity attributable to equig holders (Refer Note 12)

Particulaas

Eafance as at Aprll l, 2O2O
Loss for the year
Addition during the year
Other comprehensive inclme
Ealance as at l,larch 31, 2021
Loss for the year
Addition during the yea|-

Other comprehensive income
Balance as at lilarch 3t, 2022

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,

In terms of our report of even date attached

For lilRKS and Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Nur,)ter:. 237-1 lN)

Reserves & Surplus

Securitiespremium Retainedea.nings

Number of shares
46tO46
20,4a9

66,535
15,665

Amount in INR

a2,20O

4,6|J,460
2,04,890

6,6s,3sO
1,56,650

8,22,OO0

73,67,6t,3r2

2,47,94,763_

76,r5,56,O75

2,94,41,425

79,r3,97,9OO

(74.25,67,0241 (5a,O5,712)
(3,96,40,6s1) (3,96,40,6s1)

- 2,47,94,763
(1,23,530) (1,23,53O)

(7a,23,3r,2051 (2,O7,7s,L3O)
(s,07,7s,080) (5,07,7s,o8o)

- 2,94,4L,|J2s
(1,6s,902) (1,6s,902)

(a3,32,72.La7) (4,1A,74,2a7)

Place: New Delhi
Dater 26.05.2022

(DrN 02797819)



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March,2022

1. Company Overview

lulosaic Media Ventures Private Limlted ('the Company') was incorporated on February 6,
2007 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the
business of gathering and distributing news, analysis and research for business,
management, investors and general public and dissemination of news through electronic
media and portals which is displayed on Company's website and mobile based platforms.
It also organizes events and trainings for the industry through conferences.

On 2 December 2020, the shares of the Company are acquired by HT Media Limited.

The registered office of the Company is located at HT House, 2nd Floor, KG Marg,
Connaught Place, New Delhi- 110001

Information on related pa rty relationship of the Company is provided in Note 27. .

The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March, 2022 are
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
May 26, 2022.

2. Significant accounting policies followed by company

2,L Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind-AS') specified in the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013 (the "accounting principles generally accepted in India").

For all the periods upto 31 March 2020, the financial statements were prepared under
historical cost convention in accordance with the accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. These financial statements for the period ended 31 lYarch, 2021 are the
first that the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note-2g for
first time adoption of Ind AS.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the
fina ncia I statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments).

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), whlch is also
the Company's functional currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements
and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as oer the reouirement of
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. Rounding of errors has been ignored.



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2022

2.2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non- current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/
non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

b) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement
of the Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded during the period. or reported in previous financial statements. are
recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2fJ22

c) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the DrinciDal market for the asset or liabilitv. or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or lia bility

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

wnote:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or lia bilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which inputs are inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
r6n^rfind 

^a.i^.1

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2022

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value.

d) Revenue recognitlon

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wi
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. regardless of when
the payment is being made. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price,
which is the consideration, adjusted for allowances, if any, as specified in the
contract with the customer. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers. The
Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account.
Rather, it is tax collected on behalf of the government, Accordingly, it is excluded
from revenue.

Contract asset represents the Company's right to consideration in exchange for
services that the Company has transferred to a customer when that right is
conditioned on something other than the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is
required to do invoicing, the same is presented as Unbilled receivable.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognised:

Subscription revenue
Revenue in this respect is recognized over the period of the subscription, in
accordance with the established orincioles of accrual accountino. Unearned revenues
are reoorted on the balance sheet as deferred revenue,

Event/Conference revenue
Event/Conference revenue is recognized on the completion of event activity and sum
received in advance, if any, for event is recognized as advance from customers,

Advertisement revenue
Revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed and when it is
"probable" that the Company will collect the consideration it is entitled to in
exchanoe for the services it transfers to the customer.

syndication revenue
Revenue from content Selling is recognized as and when the content is provided to
the customer.



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, ZO22

Significant financing component
The Company receives advance payments from customers for subscriDtion servtces.
There is a significant financing component for these contracts considering the length
of time between the customers' payment and the subscription service, as well as the
prevailing interest rate in the market. As such, the transaction price is discounted,
using the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounrs
the cash selling price of subscription service to the amount paid in advance). The
rate is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Company and customers at contract inception.

Interest income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounrs
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepaymentr extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit
ano toss.

e) Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss
for the Deriod in resDect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount exDected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes dealing with accounting for uncertainty over
income tax treatments is applicable from accounting periods beginning on or after 1

April 2019. It does not have any material impact on financial statements of the
ComDanv.
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Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2O22

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided considering temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary difFerences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax ljabilities are offset if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authoritv on either the same taxable entitv or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax Iiabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which signiflcant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the
company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entitlement are
grouped with Deferred Tax Asset in the Balance Sheet. The company reviews at each
balance sheet date the reasonable certainty to recover deferred tax asset includinq
MAT Credit Entitlement.

f) Property, plant and equipment

The Company has applied for one time transition option of considering the carrying
cost of Property, Plant and Equipment on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2019 as the
deemed cost under Ind-AS.

Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if
anv.
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Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March,2(J22

Plant and equipment is stated at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part
of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recoonition criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
Pur Lr ro5r Pr rLs.

Recognition:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset
if, and only if:

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity; and

(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

All other expenses on existing assets, including day- to- day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing pafts, are charged to the statement of profit and
loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

when significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning
of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recoonition criteria for a Drovision are met.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Block of Assets UsefgLU&..(xg4I!L
Computers

Furniture

Office equipment

Sener and Network
Lease Hold Impro\€ment

3

l0
5

6

9

Property, Plant and Equipment which
depreciation is provided on pro-rata
addition/deletion.

are added/disposed off during the year,
basis with reference to the month of
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the exDenditure will flow to the comoanv.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect
expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as a part of indirect
construction cost to the extent the exDenditure is related to construction or is
incidental thereto. Other indirect costs incurred during-the construction periods
which are not related to construction activity nor are incidental thereto are charged
to Statement of Profit and Loss. Reinvested income earned during the construction
period is adjusted against the total of indirect expenditure.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the
date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment Iosses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
ex penditu re is incurred.

On transition to Ind-AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2019 measured as per the

Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible
assets.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March,2022

h)

assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annuallv to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient
obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of orofit or loss.

Intangible asset comprises of cost related to software acquired and
Tech nology/Data base-Sa les Edge acquired. Both are amortized on straight line basis
over period of three years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment
to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

comoanv as a lessee

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual jmpairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-
generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments

i)

i)
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of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded Company's or other available fair value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUS to which
the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts' the
company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates. or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU'S recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is

carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at
the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation' When the company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented

in the statement of Drofit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a

current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability
when discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recoonised as a finance cost.
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l) Employee benefits

short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:
All employee benefits paya ble/availa ble within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of Drovident fund is a defined contribution scheme.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund.

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for examDle. a reduction in future oavment or a cash refund.

Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in

the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained

earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

r The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss:

. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs/ gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

. Interest expense

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is

treated as short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

qr
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Re- measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are immediately taken
to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the
leave as a current liabllity in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non- current
liability.

m) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets (other than trade receivable which is recognised at transaction
price as per Ind AS 115) are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
categories:

. Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specifled dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method' Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
company's balance sheet) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangemenu and either (a) the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.9.. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115 (referred
to as'contractual revenue receivables' in these financial statements)'

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on:
o Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased

significantly, lifetime ECL is used' If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the

b
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instrument improves such that there is no Ionger a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient/ the Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix
is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analvsed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e,, financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
orig ination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Companv's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
oelow:
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Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest- bea ring loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation Drocess.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

n) cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deDosits, as defined above.

o) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

-the profit attributable to owners of the Company

-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial
year.

Diluted earnings per share
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Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

-the after income tax effect of interest and other financino costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not Drobable that an outflow of resources will be reouired to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the entity.

2.3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

The areas involving critical estimates or Judgement are as below:

Taxes
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations,
changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the
wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of
existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and
the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company
establishes Drovisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such
Drovisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax
assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and
the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide
variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of
the Companies,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable proflts together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note-31

^.
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Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determlning the
appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to

demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Refer Note-2g.
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Note 3 : Propertv, Plant and EquiDment

Particulars
(Amount in INR)

Server and Leasehold Total
Network Cost Improvements

Computels Office Furnitlte and
Equipment Fixtures

Additions
Less : Disposals/ adjustments
As at l.larch 31, 2022

Accumulated Deoreciation/
ImDai.ment
As at April 1, 2O2O 66,38,246 24,25,565
Depreciation charge for the year 7,51,181 2,4ttt28
Less : Disposals/ adjustments 13,55,258 2,12,077

Imparrment charge (refer note I -
below)
As at March 31, 2021

Depreciation charge for the year

Less : disposals/ adlustments

60t34,t6a 24,54,617

Cost
As at Ap.il 1, 2O2O
Additions
Less : Djsposals/ adjustments
As at March 31, 2021

44,37,O32 33,aO,O66
1,12,000

14,01,082 2,4L,628
71,47,95O 31,3a,438

2,49,OO0

20,696 8,62,511
73,76,254 22,75,927

6,76,434 r,46,tJ4,337
- t,t2,ooo
- t7.62,2IO

6,76,434 
't29.54.L27- 2|49,OOO

- 14,57,881
6,76,434 L,13,45,246

a9,251 t.O6,37,O57
50,644 11,61,306

- L6.77,87O

5,36,538 5,36,53a

6,76,434 1,|J6,57,O32

- 11,a4,O4O

- 15,07,724

6,76,434 L,O3,33,344

5,87,183 39,67,2AO
- 22,97,095
- 10,11,902

7,32,517

20,115

t7,9a,746
LL,t3,7a2
6,29,624

3,06,198

9.54,5O1
6,43,821
2,7(J,633

5,30,255

5,30,255

5,30,25s

2,3t,512
33,498

2,65,O1O

45,158

3,10,168

2,9a,7 4l
2,65,245

15,4O,550

1,19,500
14,61,05O

4,44,4L9
10,16,631

12,52,4ag
84,855

1,10,53 5

12,26.€O3

1,00,107

4,21,g24

9,O4,9a6

3,24,O64
2,34,247
t,tL,645

As at March 31, 2022
Net Block
As at ADril 1, 2O2O
As at Mar€h 31, 2021
As at lilarch 31, 2022

Note: I

67,46,630 20,.,5,294

Addltional informatior for which impairment loss has been .ecognized are as under:
1) Nature of asset I Leasehold Improvements
2) Amount of Impairment : Nil (Previous Year: 536,538)
3) Reason of Imoairment : due to Vacation of Leasehold Premises.

,''..'
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Note 4 | Intanqible Assets and Intanqible Assets under develooment

Particulars

Cost
As at April 1, 2O2O

Additions
Less : Disposals/ adjustments
As at March 3t 202t
Additions
Less ; Disposals/ adjustments
As at March 31, 2022

Accumulated Amortization /
Impairment
As at April 1, 2O2O

Charge for the year
Less: DisDosals

As at March 31, 2O2l
Charge for the year
Less: Disposals

AB at March 31, 2022

(Amount in INR)
Sottware Technology/Dat Total

abase-Sales
Edse

4|),72t"2L

1,900
40.7O,92r

-

4t),7O,921 42,41,24O 83,12,161

30,76,432
t9,37,424

1,9OO

50,11,955
14,3O,654

64,42,620

- 40,72,421
42,4r,240 42t4r,240

_ 1,900
42.41,240 83,12,16r

40,56,074 27,A6.546

30.r6,432
5,64,625

1,900
36,39,L37

4,16,9r7

9,96,349
4,3L,764

L4$47

!3,72,-7_g9

13t72t799
14,r3,747

March 31,2021
33,00,205

33,OO,205

Net Block
As at April 1, 2O2O

As at March 3L, 2O2l
As at March 3L, 2022

- 9,95,349
2a,6at44t 33,00,205
L4t54,694 t4t69,S4L

Net Book Value

Intangible assets

Total

(Amount in INR )
March 31, 2022

14,69,54L

r4.69.s41-
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Note 5 :Other fanancial assets

I. other financial Assets at amoftised cost

March 3'., 2|J22
(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2O2l '

Particulars
(a) Interest accrued on deposits and others
(b) Security deposit
Total
Current

' Non - current

Note 5A 3 Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Particulars

Trade receivables

cash and cash equivalents

Note March 31, 2022

2,18,958

22,OOO
2,4O,958
2,18,958

22,OOO

66,L4O

50,38.750
51,O4,89O

66,14O
5O,38,75O

March 31, 2021

2,66,07,44a
L,55,39,637

7 t,32,452
51,04,890

5,43,,84,427

Other bank balances

Other financial assets

Total

Note 6 : Income tax assets

Particulars

Income tax assets (net) [related to current tax]
Total
Current
Non - current

f

8
o

q

4,3L,7 L ,57 8

89,96,930
73,O4,902

2,40,958

5,97,L4,368

March 31, 2()22

r,29,60,68r
1,29,6O,681

1,29,6O,681

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

L ,g2,46,7 89
t,92,46,7_89

L,92,46,789
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o.alc [.di. V.nturuo Prlvltc Umlt d
}|ot€3 to nn.nci.l .tst mcnt for the nercndrd l|lldl 31,2022

t{ob 8 : Clsh rnd cash €qu:valanto

B.lanc. wlth
- On current accounts

- Deposits orlglnal maturity of less than three months

tlob I : Olh.r b.nk brLnc€ (Amount ln l R)

Prrtlcul.ra sftfi 31, 2022 l|ardr 31, 2021

Bank balances other than (8) abqte
- Deposits with orlglnal maturlty of thr€e months or morc than three

months but less than twelve months
73,O4,902 7t,32,452

Totrl 73,U,9o2 7r,32,,!52

ota lO : O'tl|Cr cnntnt aa.at3

Balance wlth govemment authorities

ffiw#
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Increase/(decrease) during the year

At March 31, 2021
Increase/(decrease) during the year

At Maich 31, 2022

tssued and subscribed caPital
Preference shlres of INR 10 each lssu€d, aubscrlbed and fullv Da

At April l, 2O2O
Chanqes dunnq the vear
At March 31,2021
Chanqes durinq the Year
At March 31, 2022

Note 11 : Share capital
Authoris€d share capital
Particulars
At April 1, 2020

Preference shares
Particula15

Shares outstanding at the beqinninq of ihe year

Shares issued durinq the Year
Shares outstandinq at the end of the Year

Equity Shar€s

Number of shares A.nount In INR
6,00,000

13,00,000

19,oo,ooo

19,00,000

60,000

1,30,000

1,90,OOO

1,90,000

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity

shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidatlon of the company, the holders of equity shares

wlll be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distrlbutlon of all preferential amounts The

distributlon will be in Droportlon to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

tssued and subscrlbed caoital
Equlty shares of INR 10 each issued, subtcribed and fully paid

At April l, 2O2O

Changes durin9 the year

At March 31, 2O2l
changes during the year

At March 31, 2022

Reconciliatlon of the shares outstandinq at the beqlnninq and at the end of the v€ar :

Equitv shares
Partlculars

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares issued during the Year

shares outstandlng at the end of the year

Note 11 A : Instruments entirelY equitv in nature
Autho sed share caDital
Particulars
At April 1, 2020
Increase/f decrease) durinq the vear
At lilarch 31, 2021
Increase/(decrease) durinq the vear
At arch 31, 2022

Amount in tNR Number of shares AmountinINR

Number of shares Amount in tNR
46,045 4,60.460
20,489 2,O4,49O

66,535 6,65,350
15,555 1,56,650

e2,2OO 8,22,OOO

March 31.2022 March 3l.2O2l
Numbei of shares

56,535
15.555

82,2OO

,,"i"

46,046
20,449

66,535

Preference shares
Number of shares Amount in INR

10,ooo 1,oo,o00

10,ooo l.oo,oo0

10,ooo 1,O0.OOO

6,65,3s0

a,22,OO0

38.590

38.590

38.590

38,590

34.590

4,60,460
2,04,89O

6,65,35O

Terms/ rlghts attached to greference shares
The company has two classes of preference shares
(l) Non cumulatave compolsorily fully convertible participating preference shares. The tenure for these shares is 19 years after which these shares shall be

;;nverted to equity shares (ln 1:1 ratio). The rate of divided is O9o on such share and are participating in nature.

(ii) Non-cumutative fully and compulsority convertible non-partlclpating preference shares. The tenore for these shares is 20 years after which these shares

;h;ll be converted to equity shares (in 1:l ratio). The rate of divided is Ovo on such shareandare non _participatjng in nature.

Number of shares Amount in INR
3,459

3,8s9

3,8;9

Reconclllation of the shares outstandinq at the beqlnninq and at the end of the vear :

ilarch 31.2022 March 31' 2O2l
Number of shares amountlnlNR Number of shares AmountinINR

a,e5g

38,590

3a,590



i{osalc Mcdia V6ntures Privatc t-tmttcd
I{otes to flnanclal statemenk for th. vear ended itarch 31, 2022

ilote 11 A : Shares held by holdlng/ uttt|nate hotding conr.ny and/ or thcir sub3ldt.rtca/ associateg
Out of equlty and pr€ference shares issued by the ComDany, shares held by its holdtng comgany, subsidtary of holdtng company are as betow;

(Amoum in II|R )
tlarch 31. 2022 l{aEh 31,2O2!

8,22.000 6.65,350

Particulars
Hl ll.dla Ltd. the holding Company

82,200 €qulty shares (March 31, 2021 - 66.535) of INR t0 each
tully Dald

3,859 preference sha.es (i4arch 31, 2021 - 3,859) of INR 10 each

Partlcula13

HT lledia Ltd (the holding Company)
Equlty shares of INR l0 each fully patd

Shareholdln! of Promoters as bclowl
At ilarch 31, 2022

38,590

M.rch 31. 2022
l{umb€r of sha.c5 q6 holdlng

100.00%

llarch 31, 2O2l
t{umbcr of shares qr holding

66,535

38,590
fully pald

Octalls ot 3harehold€rs holdlng moiG than 5 shares l|| th€ Co|npany

100.00%
Preference shar€s of INR l0 each fully paid 3,859 100.00% 3,a59 100.00o/o

As per records of the Company, includrng rts register of shareholders/members and other declaration recerved from th€ sharehotders r€oardino beneficial
interest, the above shareholdlng represents both legat and beneflctat ownerships ofshares,

42,200

,H'*T|ff"* chane€ durine th€ tli'.'j."i-1r?:t 
q6 o, totar shares 

q6 chansc dorrns

66,535 15.665 82,200 100% 24%
Equitv Sharci

HT l4edia Ltd

P.feferencc she.€3
HT 1,4€dla Ltd

At llarch 31, 2021

Equltv Sharcs
NWS Diqltal Asla Pte Ltd.'
News Corooration *

3,859
70,394

- 3,859
1s,665 46,0s9

0o/o
Total

S:'*"'|ltr:l cheneedurhs thc Y'"'i"?ffi,:'

46.045
I (1)

q6 ot totat shares 
q6 chang' dutlng

tnc ycal

HT l4edla Ltd

(46,045)

66.535

r."it
7q44

-100Y0
-100o/o

to0o/o

-1000/o
100%

0%
OYo

100%

ovo
10090

Nws Dlqltal Asla Pte Ltd. *
Prcferencc sharca

HT t'1edia Ltd
Totil

3,859

49.905

(3,859)
3,859

20,449

+On 2 December 2020, the shares ofthe Company are acquired by HT lvt€dia Limited.



lilosaic liledia Ventures private Limlted
otes to financial statements for the ycar €nded ltlarch 31, 2022

Note 12 : Other equity

Particulars
Securities premium

Retained earnings

(Amount in I R)
l.larch 31,2022

79,t3,97,9OO
March 31, 2021

(83 ,32,72,t87)
7 6 ,75 ,56,07 5

(78 ,n 3r ,2OS)
G,14,74,2Ar) 2,O7,7rr3'O)Total

Securities premium
Particulars
At April 1, 2b2O

Increase during the year

At March 31, 2021
Increase during the year

At l{arch 31, 2022
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earninss

,Particularc
At April 1, 2O2O

Net loss for the vear
Less : Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

- Remeasurement loss on defrned benefit plans, net of tax
At March 31, 2021
Net loss for the year
Less : items of other comprehensive income recognised direcdy in retained earning;

- Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans, net of tax
At March 31, 2022

Amount in Il{R
73.67,6r,iL2

2,47,94,763
76,r5F6.O75

2,98,4r,A25
79,L3,97,9OO

utilised only for limited purposes sucn as

Amount in INR
(74,25.67,O24)

(3,96,40,6s1)

( 1,23,s30)
(7e,23,3rt2O5)

(5,07,7s,OeO)

....^^^'\rto),tu2)
(83,32,r2,re7'



Itlosaic l4€dia Ventur.. Prir6t Linit d
l{ote5 to financlal stat€ment for th€ year €nd€d M.rch 31,2022

Not€ 13: Tradc D.y.bl€3 (r.fer b€lowaa.ino schldul€l

- totil outstanding due of micro €nt€rprlses
and small enteorises'

- totaloutstandlng du€s other than of rfilcro
€nt€m.ies and small entem.E€s

-total outstandina due to .€lat€d oarties
rolal
Currcnt 2.94,57,A64 L94,L1,22A
Non- cun€nt
'Th€re is INR 73,961 due to mlcro and small enterpris€s 6s at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: INR Nil).
Accordlngly, disclosures as requlred und€rthe Mic.o, Smalland Mediom Enterprises Developm€nt Act, 2006
IMS ED Act) are mention€d below :

Ba3€d on th. Intorm.tion avlllabl6 with th. Comp.ny, D.t ils ot dues to Micro and Sm.ll
Enterprit€s .t defin.d und€r the I4Sr|ED Act, 2OO5

(Amount in IltR)
ir..ch 31.2022 llarch 31,2021

73,96r

L,48,76,984 1,94,t1,224

{i) 14str4E
(ii) Others

55,05.919
2,04,57.464 L94,L1,224

(Amount in l R)
March 31, 2022 Mtrch 31. 2021

73,951
Interest du€ thereon at the end ofthe accounllng year
The amount of inler€st paid by the buyer in terms of Sectlon 16, of
tte MstlED Act, 2005 along wlth the amounts of the paynent made
to the suppli€r b€yond th€ appolnt€d day durinq €ach accounting

The amolnt of interest due aod payable for the year ror delay in
maklng payment (whlch hav€ b€en pald but beyond th€ appohted
day during the yea4 but without adding the lnter€st specified under
t.lsfiEo Act, 2006.

The amount of hteresi accrued and remainhg u.paid at the end of

The amolnt of turther Int;;-est remalnlng due and payable even in
the succeedlng years, until such date when th€ hterest d|jes as
above are actually pald to the small enteArise for the puQos€ of
dlsallowan€e as a dedudlble exp€ndlture und€r Section 23 of
MsrlED Act. 2006.

Trad€ orvablo 6a€lnq rchedul6 aa on March 31,2022

(iii) Disouted dues - MSME
(lv) Dlsouted dues - Others

Total

r,26.00.044

1.2a,OO,O/14

OuBtandlnq tor followinc perioclr f.on the duc d.te
Unbillcd Not Ds. |. $ thrn I yaar 1-2 ycara 2-3 y.!r! Lor€ th.n 3

73,96r
75,43.854

73,951 75,43€54

lrad! Davabl. aqeina 3chedule a! on March 31, 2O2l

(r) MSME
(lil Oth€rs
(iii) Disouted dues - MSME
liv) Disouted dues - Others

outatandinc tortollowinc D€rlod. fro|n the due date
Unbill.d l{ot Du. LcaE tirn 1 y.tr 1-2 y€arr 2-3 y€.r. or. th.n 3

r.58.80.174 - 15.3r.054

1,54'a0,174 - 35,31,054

73.96r
2,03.83,903

2.04,57,464

Total

1_94.11.224

:
L,94,11,22E



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, ZO22

Note 14 : Other financial liabilities

Particulars
other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Employee related payables

Total other financial liabilities
Current

Non- Current

March 31, 2022

zto),60,562

2,65,46,342

. 2,65,a6,382

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

1,81,54,918

1,81,54,914

1,41,54,918

(Amount in INR)
March 31. 2022 March 31,2021

Note 14 A: Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Particulars Note

Trade payables

Employee related payables

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Note 15: Contract liabilities

Particulars

Note 16 : Provisions

Particulars

Provision for leave benefits (refer note 29)
Provision for qratuity (refer note 29)

Total
Current
Non- current

Note 17 t Other current liabilities

Particulars

Statutory dues
Total

2,04,57,464 .

2,6s,A63a2

4,7O,44,246

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

t?

74

L,94,71,224

1,81,54,918

3,75.,66,L46

Deferred revenue
Advances from customers
Total

Curlent

5,9r,56,L97
16,65,389

6,08,21,545
5,O8,21,586

March 31, 2022

!4,59,454
67 ,47 ,40L

42,46,45s
29,79,24'
52,67,57 4

March 31, 2022

80,08,088
ao,oa,oaa

4,99,70,tr7
13,97,574

5,L3,67,69r
5,r3ft7,69L

(Amount in INR)
l,larch 31, 2021

34,74,854
62,57,445

97,32,699
34,16,434
63.16,261

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

44,14,473
44,r4,4L3

Non- current
Amount of revenue recognised during FY 2021-2022 from contract liabilities at the beginning of the year is
INR 4,44,96,006 (F\ 2O2O-2r INR 3,55,09,465)
Amount accrued during FY 2O2r-2O22 amounts to INR 5,39,49,902 (FY 2O2O-21INR 4,67,18,633)

,'



osaic l.ledia Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended arch 31, 2022

Note 18 | Revenu€ from operatlons
Revenue from €ontracts with customers

Particulats
Sale of services

liaarch 31, 2022
(Amount in INR)
ilarch 31. 2021

4,29,44,352
1,07,16,073

6,61,2a,502
A,a4,132

- Special events and conventions revenue
- Adveftisement revenue
- Subscription revenue

- Syndication revenue

7,59,24,O47

2,16,66,736

8,59,81,ss1
17,21,671

L t'g t21,437

51,582

2,OO,242
t,3a,o6,a1a

arch 31, 2022

15,63,88,190

47,56,219

14,75,262

La,a3,L27

16,45,O2,794

Total

Particula.s
Contract price

ilarch 31, 2022
18,52,94,005

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

12,13,13,059

1,4t,635
46,61-2

3,84,416
t 6,33,699

18,52,94,OO5 12,13,13,O59
Reconciliation of revenue r€cognised with the contracted price is as followsi

Adjustments to the contract price

Revenue recognlsed

Note 19 r Other income

Particulars
Interest income on EIR basis
- Bank deposits
- On Income tax refund

Other non - operating income
LJnclaimed balances/liabilities written back (net)

Net gain on dlsposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Exchange differences (net)

Miscellaneous income
Total

Note 20 | Employee benefits expense

Particula.s

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29)

Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

Workmen and staff welfare expenses

Tota I

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

7,44,335 5,03,696
18,89,222 5,57,340

18.52,94,OO5 12,13,13,O59

(Amount in INR)
iila.ch 31, 2021

20 ,00 ,o2,364
40,32,021

19,50,378

31,76,479

20,91,O1,642

Note 21 : Finance costs

Particulars
Interest on debts and borrowings*

Bank charges

Interest arising from revenue contracts

Total

Total

farch 31, 2022

uarch 31,2022
11,84,040

14,30,664

. . to,l4,7o4

- 30,44,537

62,301 24,143

63,24,t31 48,36,937

63,46,432 79to5.6r7

* Interest has been charqed on loan taken from HSBC bank from May 27, 2020 till Oct 31, 2020, refer note 24.

Note 22: Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars
Depreciation of tangible assets (refer note 3)

Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4)

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

11,61,306

?o,94,729

ft-;



Content syndication

Rent

Power and fuel

l'losaic liledia Ventures Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

,,losaic Media Ventures Private Limlted
Notes to financial stat€ments for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Note 23 : Othe. expenses

Particulars

Event and training management expense

Data collection charges

Advertising and sales promotion

3,83,35,609 1,47,36,gOL

t,oL,fi,rg1 91,95,938

25,88,736 7a,07,667

31,54,522 11,86,651

2t,g3,oL6 2,$,21,644
10,52,039 13,03,590

58,56,312 22,1!,576
11,99,504 37,29,894

7,81,965 13,63,881

- 30 
'51,279

6,89,7 L3 2,35,032
62,47,661 65,46,607

11,70,538 14,15,066
5,50,000 a,52,750

56,0s3
7,37,3r1

56,O44

March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR)
l'larch 31, 2O21

a,s2,750

Legal and professional fees

Repairs and ;aintenance
Communication costs

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

website hosting and related expenses

Recruitment expense
Payment to auditor (refer note I)
Printing and stationery
Payment 9ateway charges

Exchange differences (net)

Impairment of Property plant and equrpment

Loss on sale of Property plant and equipment

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts and advances (refer note II)
l.4iscellaneous expenses

Total

Note I! Payment to auditors

Particulars
As auditor :

- Audit fee

- Tax audit fee

Reimbursement of expenses

Total

7,43,373

1 q? qqa

10,79,160 6,47,44i
19,076 1,67,552

7,59t71,969 7.76,59,42L

i{arch 31, 2022
(Amount in rNR)
March 31, 2021

a,02,7 50

50,000

5,50,000

5,5O,OOO

Note It! Allowances for Bad doubtful debts and advances (lncludes bad debts written off)

Particulars
Opening Batance of provisior for doubtful d€bts and advances

Provision Created

Provision written back

Closing Balance of provision for doubtful debts and advanGes

Note 24: ExceDtlonal items

Particulars
Liabilities no lonqer requlred written back*
Total

,.larch 3L, 2.J22

9,39,447
10,79,160

(2,s4,237)

17,64,37O

March 31, 2022

(Amount in INR)
March 31, 2021

2,92,000

6,47 ,447

9,39,447

(amount in INR)
ilarch 31, 2021

13.51,78,000
- 13,51,78,000

* Loan taken (of INR 13,OO,OO,OOO) from HSBC bank during the current period and interest cost (of INR 1,78,000) have been

repaid by News corporation (erstwhile Holding company) and waiver has been glven by News corporation to the company in

the current year. Further Loan taken (of INR 5O,OO,OO0) from NwS Digital India Private Limited has been waived off by NwS

Digital India Private Limited in the current year'



Mosaic Media ventures Private Limit€d
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3L,2fJ22

Note 25 : Other comprehensive income
The disaqqreqation of chanqes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below :

During the year ended March 3\ 2(,22
Particulars
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans (refer note 29)

Total

shares for diluted I

(1,6s,902)
( 1,6s,902)

Retained earnings
( 1,23,530)

(1,23,530)

3L, 2022 .

(5,O7rZ5,OaO)

77,136

77,L36

Retained earnings
(Amount in INR)

Total
(1,6s,9O2)
(1,6s,9O2)

Total
(1,23,s3O)
(1,23,53O)

(Amou!! in INR)
March 31. 2021

(3,96,40,651)

4g/'t

49,75L

During the vear ended March 3L, 2O2L
Particulars
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans (refer note 29)
Total

Note 26 : Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity

shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

io-ss per srrare
Bqsic earninqs per share
Diluted ea.!-nings per share

(6 s8.26)
( 6 s8.26)

.I:7e6.78)
(7.96.78)
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l.tosaic lledla ventures Prlvats Llmltcd
Notea to flnancial atatements lor thr year ended March 31, 2022

Note 28 3 Capltal and Other commitmenta
There a.e no caDital and other commitments as on lilarch 3L,2022 and March 31, 2021.

Not€ 29 | Employeo Beneflta

The Company has a defined benefit gratulty plan. The gratuity plan ls governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,

1972, Every employee who has completed five years or more of services gets a g.atuity on separatlon at 15 days

salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of servlce.

The following tables summarises the components of net employee benefits recognized In the statement of profit

and loss and amounts recognlzed in the balance sheet I

Deflned gratuity plan
Chanoes in the defined benefit obliqation as at March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021 :

The DrinciDal assumgtions used in determininq qratuity obliqatlon ior the Company's glans are shown below:

I.rch 31,2022 l.larch 31, 2021

Oiscount rate 5.05% 6.15%
a 59o

Withdrawal rate 40.009o 37.9090



mosalc tledia ventures Private Limited
l{otes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

A ouantitative sensitiviw analysis for siqnificant assumption is as shown below:

Defined gratuity plan:
(4m99n! i! IIB)

The below sensi vity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possibie changes of the assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars March 31,2022
assumptions ,. , 99crea9e,, , lnclease
,Ddc;uot rate,(-/119/")- ... ., ( 1,8_s-.1s-2-) .|,1:'9lo
3iiari qro*tt' ioiet-tilW r,72,s39 -l\7a'44s')'wiin;rJwat rqte(r/+so%) ,- (1Q,79.026.) , 5,31,466

;!aAqlaqilsiumptiqrs - Desre3sq.. - ..r-19r9:s'
pisesl,ni ret"( l* tYnl 1,77,408 (1'68's-01)

s",t to;* *.1-l+rvJ , (1,714es) !'llE s

wilhdrawal rate(-1+5Q%) 5'9?'693 (5'52'472')

The followinq Dayments are maturity orofile of Defined Benefit Obliqations in future vears:
(Amount in INR)

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021ParticulaE --'-')i,-doliso '--'-. 
rg;s,orr

Wilhin the,!19xt.-one yea-r - ii ra rri 44 7a.77L
More than one year and upto five vears :'i;';;; s.ii.OOO
More than five vears and uoto ten veaG 'r';i'i;1 i:;;:;;;
More than ten years ?s:i-;,;;i zs,rs,236
Total explctlrd PaYme-nts,

. Ps!t!9q lals ,
Defined benefit obligation (B-ase)

Duration olthe definqd bflefit plan obliq?tion
Particulars
Ranqe of dliratlgi

Defined contributlon Plan

.... -arJh ?r.2022. l:lqrch 91' Lo?l,
67 ,a7 ,40r , 6,?,5:t,945

(Amount in INR)
ilarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021" 47$6,219 - 40.,32'021

B. Leave encashment (unfunded)
The Companv recognizes the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial

valuation.

The expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at the beginning

and at the end of the Year :

Pa4iculars
Openinq balance
Benefits paid durinq the Year
Provided/ (wrjtten back) d!rjnq the veaj
Closinq balance

(Amount In tNR)

- i**ii;iiiit t*"n:7,'iio,:ii.
(s,09,94?) ( 1e,08,883)

' iaqrci sr. zo,2z Mtrch 31. 2021
2 Years 2 Years

irs,os,+sa):.. 9,49'26L
:. . !4,59,454 34,74,854



Mosaic Medla Ventures Privat€ Limited
l{otes to financlal statements fo. tho year ended ilarch 31, 2022

Note 30 :Contingent Liabillties
There are no contlngent liability as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

l{ote 3t : Deferred tax assets
Deductible temporary differcnces, unused tax losses, and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset
ls recognised in the balance sheet as on 31 March 2022 are as below:

Partlculars-
., (Amount In INR)

l'larch 31, 2022 Harch 31, 2021
Defered tax Ass€ts

2,09,.2e,ta1
62,78.558 l

4,Sr,4oi6''
36,22,2r4

3,12,41,712

3,r2,sr,i;2 - ,:,"3ii:117

Due to absence of reasonable certainity, the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreclation,
buslness loss and other timing differences,

Note 32 i Capltal management
For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves. The prlmary objective of the companies capltal management is to maxlmlse the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financtal covenants. To maintaln or adjust the capital structure, the company may return capital to
shareholdeF or issue new shares. The entlre source of funding is through equity,

No changes were made in the objectives, policles or processes for managing capital during the year ended llarch 31, 2022 and
l4arch 31,2021.

l{ote 33 : Fair values

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade
payables and other current financial llabilities approximate their carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair value
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instrLiments. The falr value of the liabilities is the amount at which the
lnstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing partles, other than in a forced or llquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
- The securlty deposits giv€n are evaluated by the Company based on parameters soch as interest rate, risk factors, risk

characteristics and jndividual credit-worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken anto account
for the exoected losses.

Particulars Carrying value Fair value Fair Value
measurement

Financrar assets measured at amortised a;st Ltlerarchv 
level 

. .

Security deposit (refer note 5) 22'OOO 22,000 Level 2

Not6 34 : Segment informatlon
The Company is engaged malnly into the Event business and there are no other reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 on

Operating Segments. The management of the Company monitors the operating results of the aforesaid business for the purpose

of making decislons about resource allocatlon and performance assessment

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carryjng amount of segment assets and segment liablllties, are as

reflected in the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021.

B?,7.s!!41
s199,o,sj

.,. 63,52,0s0
2tO3,36t245
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Note 35 : Financial risk madagement objectives and policies
The Company's principal flnancial liabilities, comprises loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to flnance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include cash ano casn
equlvalents that it derives directly from operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the mitigation of these
risks. The Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The policies for managing each
ofthese risks, which are summarized below:-
(1) l.larket risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices, Market risk comprises interest rate risk and currency risk. Financal instruments afTected by market risk include loans and
borrowings.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. As on I'larch 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 no borrowings exist.

Foreiqn currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the .isk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activities (when revenue or erpense is denominated in a foreign currency). The impact of Foreign currency sensitivity is

not expected to be material-

(2) Credit risk

Credlt risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or costomer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financjng activities, including deposits with banks and other financial assets.

Tr.de receivables and Other Financial Assets at amortised cost
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The maximum exposure to

credit risk at the reporting date is the carryrng value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7A and Note 9 The

Comoanv does not hold collateral as security.

The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several

jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance

with the Company,s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made as per guidelines and within limits approved by Board of

Directors. Board of Directors/ Management reviews and update guidelines, time to time as per requirement. The guidelines are

set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mltigate financial loss throuqh counterparty's potential failure to make

oavments.
(3) Liquiditv risk
ihe Co.oanv monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool
The table below sommarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities
As on arch 31, 2022
Particulars
i.ia" -o otn". puyubles (refer note 13) -
Other financial liabrlrttes (refer note l4)

As on March 31, 2o21
Particulars
Trade and other payables (refer note li,
Other financial liabilitie; (refer note t4)

with in I year

i,21,2',^'i2:

More than l vear

More than I year_

(Amount in INR)
Total

2,04,57,464
2,65_,86 ,342

With i.! I Year
1,94,11,224
1,81,54,918

(Amount in INR)
Total

1,94,r1,228
1,81,s4,918
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Note 36i Standardg issued but not yet eff€ctive
On 23 March 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) assued certain amendments and annual amprovements to Ind AS.
These amendments are applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April2022.

Amendment to Ind AS 103
Reference of Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS has been given for definition of assets and liabilities.
The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Companyt financial statements,

Amendment to Ind AS 16
Sale of items produced in the process of makjng PPE available for its intended user Sale proceeds of such items would be
deducted from the cost of PPE before its intended use.
The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendfient to Ind As 37
Cost to fulfil a contract: Include both:
(a) incremental costs-for example, direct labour and materials; and
(b) an allocation of other direct- for example, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of PPE used in fulfillinq the
conlract

Amendment to tnd AS 101
where a subsidiary adopts Ind AS later than its parent entity and applies Ind AS 101. D16(a), it is permitted to measure
cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at amounts included in CFS of parent's date of transition.
This amendment is not apglicable to the comDanv.

Amendment to Ind AS 109
While performing the '10 per cent test' for derecognition of financial liabilities, borrower includes only fees paid or received

between borrower and lender directly or on behalf of the other's behalf.
The application of thls amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Companyk flnancial statements.

Amendment to rnd as 41
Aligns the fair value measurement requirement in Ind AS 41 with those in Ind AS 113, Fair Value Measurement.

This amendment is not applicable to the Company

Note 37 | Management has been continuously evaluating the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-19 on the operations and financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022. the Company has

considered and taken into account internal and external information and has performed sensitivity analysis based on cllrrent

estimates in assessing the recoverability of financial and non financial assets. Given the uncertainties associated with nature,

condition and duration of covlD-19, the impact assessment on the company's financial statements will be continuously made

and provided for as required.

Note 38 : Rcclassification :
i-. pu.sG"iio-ime"rimeni in Schedute III to the Companies Act, 2013, effective from l April 2021, the Company has modified

the classrfication of certain assets and liabilities, Comparative amo{.ints in the notes to the financial statements were reclassified

for consistency

Original Reclassified Difterence
Assets

Non-current assets
Financial Assets

-LOans
-Other financial assets

Current agsets
Financial Assets

-Trade recervables
-Other financial assets

Liabilities
Current liabilitiei

-Contract liabilities
-Other current liabilities

50,38,750

2,6t,17,454

4,g9,70,117
58,11,987

50,38,750

2,66,07,449
66,140

5,13,6'1,691
44,14,413

(50.38,7s0)
50.38,750

4,89,991
(4,89,991)

t3,97,574
(13,97,574\

2. During the year ended 31 March 2022. the company has revised the presentation of ceftain notes to the financial statements

for better presentation. comparative amounts in the notes to the financial statements were reclassified for consistency

,A
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t{ote 39 | Statutorv lnformatlon :
(i) No proceeding has been inltiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitlon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

(ii) The Company has not been declared as wllful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender

(iii) The Company has not entered into any transactions vrith companies stnrck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013
or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

(iv) There are no transactlon which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act. 1961.
(v) There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) There are no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
('lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
by or on behalf of the Company or

b) provlde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) There are no funds which have been received by the Company from any peGons or entlties, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

a) diredly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
by or on behalf of the Fundinq Party or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the llke from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(viii) The Company (as per the provlsions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have
more than one CIC (which is not required to be registered with RBI as not being Systemically Important CIC ).
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Total Debt = Debt compises of current borrowings .

(including current maturities of long term
borrowings), non-@rrent borrowings and interest

l..-'.:

l

accruecl on borrowings.
Total Equity = Shareholders' Equity

D6bt seryice coverage ratio (in times)
(EBITDA - DeDreciation and amortization
expense)/ (Debt payable within one year +
Interest on debt)
Return on Equlty Ratlo (%)

( Profit/( I oss ) a fter ta x / Av e ra g e sha reho I d e r's
Equity)

Inventory turnov€r ratio (tlmes)
(Cost of goods sotd /average Inventory)
COGS = Cost of materials consumed + Changes in
inventories of fi nished goodq wo*-in-progress
and stock-in-trade
Tiada rec€lvables turnov€r ratio (in tlmes)
(Revenue from operations /average trade
receivables)
Trade payablc6 tt.nover ratio (ln times)
{Other Expenses* / Average Trade payables}
* Exclualinq allotr'lances for bad and doubtful
rcceivables, ifipainnent and loss on sale of
Property, Plant & Equipment
Net capltal tumovGr r.tio (in times)
(Operating Revenue from ope@tiotE/ Working
Capital)

:-NA NA

Increase in average net trade payables
by 35 in the current year as
compared to prevlous year.

-2-78 300/o

-270h

-{6i

is.iovo

l

Revenue has lncreased by 53% and

et proflt ratlo (q6)
{Net prcfiV(lost) efter tax / Total lncohe>
Return On Catltal E.nDloyed ( )
(Earninqs Before Interest and Tax / Capital
Employed)

Return on Invcstment ( )
(Income on Fixed Deposlts / Average balance of
Fixed Deposits)

As per our report of even date

For IIRKS and Asaoclatas
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number: 23711N)

-7 t4.180/0

4.610/o

Place! New Delhl
Date:26.05.2022

*U/'
Kamal Ahsra
Partner
Membership No. 505788

Plac€: N;w Delhl
Date:26.05.2022

of the goard of Directors of

. Note 40 j Ratlo.' Ratlor I uarctr ii, -l raict rr, ./; - . Reason for
: 2022 2o2! variance v.rtance

;;,-.:::;;-i:^ ,r- .;^-i i ;;! I ; ;F ''--'-::i-Current ratio (ln tlmes) -0.57 
I O,SS 4"k

(Current assets / Cuftent llabilities)
Debt-€quity .atlo (ln tlmes)
(Totat Debv rotat Equity) I n^ ] "o 

NA



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2022 
 
1. Company Overview 

 
Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on February 6, 
2007 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.  The Company is engaged in the 
business of gathering and distributing news, analysis and research for business, 
management, investors and general public and dissemination of news through electronic 
media and portals which is displayed on Company’s website and mobile based platforms. 
It also organizes events and trainings for the industry through conferences. 
 
On 2 December 2020, the shares of the Company are acquired by HT Media Limited. 
 
The registered office of the Company is located at HT House, 2nd Floor, KG Marg, 
Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001  
 
Information on related party relationship of the Company is provided in Note 27. . 
 
The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March, 2022 are 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on       
May 26, 2022. 
 

2. Significant accounting policies followed by company 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
 
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind-AS’) specified in the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the “accounting principles generally accepted in India”). 
 
For all the periods upto 31 March 2020, the financial statements were prepared under 
historical cost convention in accordance with the accounting standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. These financial statements for the period ended 31 March, 2021 are the 
first that the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note-29 for  
first time adoption of Ind AS. 
 
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the 
financial statements. 
 
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, 
except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 
 
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy 

regarding financial instruments). 
 
- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value. 
 
The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also 
the Company’s functional currency.  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements 
and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of 
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. Rounding of errors has been ignored. 
 
 



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2022 
 
2.2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 
a) Current versus non- current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ 
non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

 
• Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating 

cycle 
 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
A liability is current when: 

 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 
 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 

b) Foreign currencies 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their 
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for 
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the 
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement 
of the Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were 
initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial statements, are 
recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise. 

 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 
transactions. 
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c) Fair value measurement 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the 

asset or liability 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. 
 
The Company valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 
 
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities 

 
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which inputs are inputs other than quoted prices 
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly 

 
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which inputs are unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability 
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a 
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level  
 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
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This note summarises accounting policy for fair value.  
 

 
d) Revenue recognition 

 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when 
the payment is being made. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, 
which is the consideration, adjusted for allowances, if any, as specified in the 
contract with the customer. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers. The 
Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements 
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing 
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 
 
Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. 
Rather, it is tax collected on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded 
from revenue. 
 
Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for 
services that the Company has transferred to a customer when that right is 
conditioned on something other than the passage of time. 
 
When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is 
required to do invoicing, the same is presented as Unbilled receivable. 
 
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due 
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related 
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company 
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services 
to the customer). 
 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognised: 
 
Subscription revenue 
Revenue in this respect is recognized over the period of the subscription, in 
accordance with the established principles of accrual accounting. Unearned revenues 
are reported on the balance sheet as deferred revenue. 
 
Event/Conference revenue 
Event/Conference revenue is recognized on the completion of event activity and sum 
received in advance, if any, for event is recognized as advance from customers. 
 
Advertisement revenue 
Revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed and when it is 
“probable” that the Company will collect the consideration it is entitled to in 
exchange for the services it transfers to the customer. 
 
Syndication revenue 
Revenue from Content Selling is recognized as and when the content is provided to 
the customer. 
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Significant financing component  
The Company receives advance payments from customers for subscription services. 
There is a significant financing component for these contracts considering the length 
of time between the customers’ payment and the subscription service, as well as the 
prevailing interest rate in the market. As such, the transaction price is discounted, 
using the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts 
the cash selling price of subscription service to the amount paid in advance). The 
rate is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing 
transaction between the Company and customers at contract inception. 
      
Interest income 
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is 
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of 
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating 
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by 
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected 
credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

 
e) Taxes 

 
Current income tax 

 
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss 
for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax. 
 
 
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date. 
 

 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised 
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or 
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 
Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes dealing with accounting for uncertainty over 
income tax treatments is applicable from accounting periods beginning on or after 1 
April 2019. It does not have any material impact on financial statements of the 
Company. 
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Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided considering temporary differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at 
the reporting date. 

 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 
tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable 
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, 
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period 
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be 
settled or recovered. 
 
MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the 
company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entitlement are 
grouped with Deferred Tax Asset in the Balance Sheet. The company reviews at each 
balance sheet date the reasonable certainty to recover deferred tax asset including 
MAT Credit Entitlement. 

f) Property, plant and equipment 

The Company has applied for one time transition option of considering the carrying 
cost of Property, Plant and Equipment on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2019 as the 
deemed cost under Ind-AS. 
 
Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. 
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Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part 
of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if 
the recognition criteria are met.   

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met 
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for 
the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 
purchase price. 
 
Recognition: 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset 
if, and only if: 

 
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the entity; and 
 
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 
All other expenses on existing assets, including day- to- day repair and maintenance 
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and 
loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred. 

 
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful 
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition 
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning 
of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the 
recognition criteria for a provision are met. 
 

 
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets as follows: 
 
Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: 

 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment which are added/disposed off during the year, 
depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of 
addition/deletion.  
 

Block of Assets Useful life (years)
Computers 3
Furniture 10
Office equipment 5
Server and Network 6
Lease Hold Improvement 9



Mosaic Media Ventures Private Limited 
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2022 
 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised 
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is 
derecognised. 

 
Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company. 
 
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect 
expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as a part of indirect 
construction cost to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is 
incidental thereto. Other indirect costs incurred during-the construction periods 
which are not related to construction activity nor are incidental thereto are charged 
to Statement of Profit and Loss. Reinvested income earned during the construction 
period is adjusted against the total of indirect expenditure. 

 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 
 

g) Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The 
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the 
date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally 
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised 
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the 
expenditure is incurred.          
 
On transition to Ind-AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value 
of all of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2019 measured as per the  
 
 
Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible 
assets. 

 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 
 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset 
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to 
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with 
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for 
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The 
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assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite 
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to 
finite is made on a prospective basis. 
 
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient 
obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 
is included in the statement of profit or loss. 

 
Intangible asset comprises of cost related to software acquired and 
Technology/Database-Sales Edge acquired. Both are amortized on straight line basis 
over period of three years. 
 

h) Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in 
connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising 
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment 
to the interest cost. 
 
Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. 
 

i) Leases 
 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
 
Company as a lessee 
 
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term 
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these 
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

j) Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that 
an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 

 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
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of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly 
traded Company’s or other available fair value indicators. 
 
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast 
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which 
the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally 
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated 
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow 
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the 
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining 
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any 
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the 
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the 
market in which the asset is used. 
 
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication 
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is  
 

 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation 
increase. 
 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at 
the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying 
value may be impaired. 

  
k) Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance 
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented 
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 
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l) Employee benefits 

 
Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:  
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the 
service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, 
wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period 
in which the employee renders the related service. 

 
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. 
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident 
fund. 
 
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an 
expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable 
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the 
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a 
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid 
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, 
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, 
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 
 
Gratuity 
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 
 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in 
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained  

 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
 
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 
 
• The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 
 
• The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost 
 
Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.  

 
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation 
as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss: 
 

• Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and 
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and 

• Interest expense 
 
Compensated Absences 
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is 
treated as short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost 
of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the 
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 
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Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are immediately taken 
to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the 
leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an 
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. 
 
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the 
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non- current 
liability. 
 

m) Financial instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets (other than trade receivable which is recognised at transaction 
price as per Ind AS 115) are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of 
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following 
categories: 

 
• Debt instruments at amortised cost 

 
• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit 

or loss (FVTPL) 
 

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI) 

 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions 
are met: 
 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 
 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.  
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De-recognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a 
Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the 
Company’s balance sheet) when: 
 
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or 

has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the 
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or 
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it 
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the 
extent of the Company continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company 
has retained. 

 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred 
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 
 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) 
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial 
assets and credit risk exposure: 
 
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 

e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance. 
 

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115 (referred 
to as ‘contractual revenue receivables' in these financial statements). 

 
The Company follows ‘simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss 
allowance on: 
• Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; 

 
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 
 
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit 
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month 
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
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instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss 
allowance based on 12-month ECL. 
 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the 
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months 
after the reporting date. 
 
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine 
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix 
is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward‐looking estimates. At every reporting date, 
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward‐looking 
estimates are analysed. 
 
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is 
recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This 
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses' in the P&L. The balance sheet 
presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 
 

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is 
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in 
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. 
 

 
Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment 
allowance from the gross carrying amount. 
 
For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines 
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the 
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in 
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 
 
The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) 
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ 
origination. 
 
Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans 
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 
below: 
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Loans and borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
This category generally applies to borrowings.  
 
 
 
De-recognition 

 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 
the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
 

n) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above. 
 
 

o) Earnings per Share 
 

Basic earnings per share 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing: 
 
-the profit attributable to owners of the Company 
 
-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial 
year. 

 
Diluted earnings per share 
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Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic 
earnings per share to take into account: 
 
-the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with 
dilutive potential equity shares, and 
 
-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been 
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 

p) Contingent Liabilities 
 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non–occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not 
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the entity. 

 
2.3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected 
in future periods. 
 
The areas involving critical estimates or Judgement are as below: 
 
Taxes 
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, 
changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the 
wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of 
existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and 
the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate 
future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company 
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such 
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax 
assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and 
the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide 
variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of 
the Companies. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. 
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of 
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note-31. 
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Defined benefit plans  
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity 
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term 
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the 
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the 
post-employment benefit obligation.  
 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific 
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to  
 
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Refer Note-29. 
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